



National GIS Survey Results

2003 Survey on the use of GIS Technology in Local Governments



1301 Pennsylvania Ave N.W Suite 800 Washington D.C. 20004 (202) 626-2400 www.pti.org







Table of Contents

WHY GIS IS IMPORTANT TO LOCAL GOVERNMENTS	3
SUMMARY OF SURVEY RESULTS	6
SURVEY HIGHLIGHTS	6
Barriers to Using GIS More Effectively	
Who is Using GIS	7
Cost vs. Benefit Assessment of GIS	7
Implemented GIS Applications	
Cooperative Development and Cost Sharing Programs	9
Most Beneficial Assistance	9
Homeland Security Support	
Policy for Sharing GIS Data	
CALL TO ACTION FOR GOVERNMENT OFFICIALS	11
Actions for Federal Government Officials	
Actions for State Government Officials	
Actions for Local Government Officials	
EXHIBIT A: DETAILED SURVEY RESULTS	13
WEB BASED INTERACTIVE REPORTING TOOL	
EXHIBIT B: EXAMPLES OF GIS IN LOCAL GOVERNMENT	17
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS	
GEOSPATIAL ONE STOP BOARD:	19
SURVEY ADVISORY GROUPS	21
Local Government Policy and Management Committee	
Local Government Technical Advisory Committee	



2003 Survey on the Use of GIS Technology in Local Governments

The 2003 Survey on the Use of GIS Technology in Local Governments was developed and executed by Public Technology, Inc. (PTI) in collaboration with the International City/County Management Association (ICMA), the National League of Cities (NLC), and the National Association of Counties (NACo).

This survey is part of a collaborative effort, sponsored by the US Department of Interior, to work with local governments to develop a national Geospatial One Stop (GOS) system. Geospatial One Stop is an Office of Management and Budget (OMB) sponsored E-Gov initiative that would more effectively organize, broaden and accelerate Federal Government plans to develop and provide improved access to Geospatial data.

Why GIS is Important to Local Governments

Local governments around the world are leveraging their information technology (IT) investments by integrating mapping and geographic information system (GIS) technology.

GIS provides essential information tools for many essential government services including:

Public Safety

Public Works

Planning

Economic Development

Community Planning

GIS allows us to view, understand, question, interpret, and visualize data in ways simply not possible in the rows and columns of a spreadsheet. Beautiful and interesting maps provide better decision making tools and analysis and make a difference in our world.



Managing Organizations

The following organizations played a key role in this survey effort that included the creation of policy and technical focus groups of local officials, development and execution of the survey, and analyzing and publishing the final report:

Public Technology, Inc. http://www.pti.org

PTI is a national non-profit technology research and development organization based in Washington, DC with the mission to bring the benefits of technology to local governments. Through research, focus groups, online discussions, publications, conferences, pilot tests and demonstration projects. PTI's local government and industry members work together to develop and apply technology to the challenges facing communities of all sizes.

International City/County Management Association http://icma.org

ICMA is the professional and educational organization for chief appointed managers, administrators, and assistants in cities, towns, counties, and regional entities throughout the world. Since 1914, ICMA has provided technical and management assistance, training, and information resources to its members and the local government community. The management decisions made by ICMA's nearly 8,000 members affect more than 100 million individuals in thousands of communities--from small towns with populations of a few hundred to metropolitan areas serving several million.

National Association of Counties http://www.naco.org

NACo, the only national organization that represents county governments in the United States, is a full-service organization that provides an extensive line of services including legislative, research, technical, and public affairs assistance, as well as enterprise services to its members. The association acts as a liaison with other levels of government, works to improve public understanding of counties, serves as a national advocate for counties and provides them with resources to help them find innovative methods to meet the challenges they face.



National League of Cities http://www.nlc.org

NLC is the oldest and largest national organization representing municipal governments throughout the United States. Its mission is to strengthen and promote cities as centers of opportunity, leadership, and governance. Working in partnership with 49 state municipal leagues, NLC serves as a national resource to and an advocate for the more than 18,000 cities, villages, and towns it represents.

Geospatial One-Stop Initiative http://www.geo-one-stop.gov

Geospatial One-Stop makes it easier, faster, and less expensive for all levels of government and the public to access geospatial information. The Geospatial One-stop is one of 24 e-government initiatives sponsored by the Federal Office of Management and Budget to enhance government efficiency and improve citizen services.

Federal Geographic Data Committee http://www.fgdc.gov

FGDC is a 19 member interagency committee composed of representatives from the Executive Office of the President, Cabinetlevel and independent agencies. The FGDC is developing the National Spatial Data Infrastructure (NSDI) in cooperation with organizations from state, local and tribal governments, the academic community, and the private sector. The NSDI encompasses policies, standards, and procedures for organizations to cooperatively produce and share geographic data.



Summary of Survey Results

Over 10,000 local governments (counties, cities, towns, townships, villages, and boroughs) were invited to respond to a national local government survey that included contact information, usage, application, data distribution, data standards, and policy questions. The survey was conducted in the summer of 2003.

More than 10% (1,156) of the local governments contacted responded to the survey.

The survey results show that GIS technology is recognized as an essential tool by many local governments but there are a significant number of local governments that do not recognize the benefits of GIS. There are a small number of local governments that effectively use GIS as an enterprise solution with a significant return on their investment.

The benefits of using GIS technology to support homeland security, public works, public safety, and economic development efforts are clearly defined. Federal, state, and local government leaders must take action to provide awareness, education, resources, and funding for more local governments to achieve these benefits.

Survey Highlights

Note that many questions allow multiple responses and therefore the cumulative percentage may be greater that 100%.

Barriers to Using GIS More Effectively

There are many barriers to the effective use of GIS technology in local government. The biggest barrier is funding. The cost of developing and maintaining GIS systems and accurate data layers can be expensive. Leading organizations have developed regional cooperative programs that share information, data, and costs associated with maintaining effective GIS infrastructures. The problem is that these organizations are 'far and few between'. It is the inherent nature of governments to operate independently. Because essential data comes from various sources, GIS technology promotes necessity of sharing data and working cooperatively.

- Over 64% of respondents are interested in GIS systems, but do not have the funding to move forward.
- Over 42% are interested in GIS systems, but do not have the technical expertise to move forward.



• Over 35% would like to know more about GIS systems to determine whether it makes sense to acquire them.

Who is Using GIS

Early adopters of GIS principally used GIS technology for geographic planning functions. With this use the technology was a priority for larger government jurisdictions. GIS technology is becoming a priority for all governments now that solutions are being effectively used in public safety, health, public works, revenue collection, and economic development. The challenge is to provide awareness, education, and funding to late adopters of GIS technology.

• Over 97% of respondents with populations of over 100,000 use GIS technology.

Population	Using GIS	Not Using GIS
100,000 or greater	97%	3%
50 - 100,000	88%	12%
Less than 50,000	56%	44%

- 56% of respondents with populations of less than 50,000 use GIS technology.
- County use of GIS (72%) is slightly higher than city use of GIS (64%).
- States with the largest percentage of communities that <u>use GIS</u> technology include Colorado, Hawaii, Arizona, Maryland, California, Nevada, Vermont, Washington, Wisconsin, and North Carolina.
- States with the largest percentage of communities <u>not using GIS</u> include Arkansas, Alabama, Mississippi, Oklahoma, South Dakota, New Jersey, Nebraska, Louisiana, North Dakota, and West Virginia.

Cost vs. Benefit Assessment of GIS

Though an effective GIS technology infrastructure can be expensive to implement, the benefits of enterprise GIS applications produce a clear and measurable return on investment (ROI).



• 86% of respondents have achieved benefits from their use of GIS technology that justify the associated cost for software, hardware, and labor.

Population	Proven ROI	No ROI
100,000 or greater	90%	10%
50 - 100,000	89%	11%
Less than 50,000	84%	16%

Implemented GIS Applications

GIS applications have become integral resources for public works, financial, public safety, and economic development. GIS applications have moved from the desktop (analysis) to significant components of essential technology systems (i.e., CAD, Emergency Management, Land Use, Tax Assessment, etc.). On the horizon, GIS technology will become a key component of every government applications system. In addition to the visual analysis of data, a key driver for enterprise GIS applications is that location is the connection point for the interoperability of disparate systems.

- 77% of respondents use GIS technology to view aerial photography.
- 70% use GIS technology to support property record management and taxation services.

Population	Aerial Photography	Public Access
100,000 or greater	90%	67%
50 - 100,000	88%	64%
Less than 50,000	71%	52%

- 57% of respondents use GIS technology to provide public access information.
- 41% use GIS technology to support capital planning, design, and construction.
- 38% use GIS technology to support permitting services.
- 38% use GIS to support emergency preparedness and response activities.
- 33% use GIS to support computer aided response activities.



• 28% use GIS activities to support crime tracking and investigative activities.

Cooperative Development and Cost Sharing Programs

Leading governments recognize the economic value of cooperative GIS organizations. In addition to sharing the cost for developing and maintaining GIS technology, these organizations provide education for professional development; networking opportunities; leadership, coordination, and representation. These organizations are often sponsored by local governments, states, GIS practitioners or independent non-profit organizations.

• 73% of respondents participate in intergovernmental cooperative GIS programs.

Population	County	Cost Sharing	State
100,000 or greater	68%	57%	34%
50 - 100,000	68%	39%	19%
Less than 50,000	79%	39%	14%

- 75% participate in county sponsored intergovernmental cooperative programs.
- 44% participate in cooperative programs that share the costs of creating base maps and layer building.
- 20% participate in state sponsored cooperative programs.

Most Beneficial Assistance

Many governments that developed GIS applications through grant funds have difficulty funding the required ongoing maintenance costs. There are thousands of dormant GIS applications that had grant funded development and local government funded maintenance. Local governments would like federal or state financial support to hire the experienced staff required to maintain the applications. They would also like financial support for training first responders who use GIS as a primary tool during their response and recovery efforts.

Population	Subsidy	Training	Volunteer
100,000 or greater	77%	69%	35%
50 - 100,000	71%	68%	28%



Less than 50,000	71%	67%	31%

- 72% of respondents would like a subsidy for hiring/contracting GIS support.
- 68% would like to receive GIS training for first responders.
- 31% would like to receive volunteer GIS support as needed.

Homeland Security Support

Local government leaders see a clear application of GIS technology for homeland security efforts. The concern that homeland security technology funding would not be applied as intended is diminished when applied to GIS. GIS applications and solutions clearly resonate with emergency management and public safety executives as an essential tool to provide the most effective support of their efforts. When you combine ground-truthing imagery, GPS, and digital maps, the possibilities are limited only to your imagination.

"After the courage and efforts of our first responders, GIS technology was the most demanded resource by local, state, and federal responders during the 9-11 response and recovery activities at the NYC world trade center". – Alan Leidner, Director of Enterprise GIS for the City of New York NY.

- 95% of respondents think that GIS technology usage can be improved with federal Homeland Security funding.
- 80% would build additional GIS data layers with Homeland Security funding.
- 76% would build new GIS applications that support Homeland Security initiatives.
- 66% would improve their maintenance of GIS data.
- 65% would provide GIS staff training.
- 54% would improve the accuracy of their GIS data.
- 43% would hire skilled GIS staff.
- 32% would design enterprise GIS architecture.
- 29% would hire GIS consultants.



Policy for Sharing GIS Data

Local government policies for sharing GIS data are evolving. Though many policies are to share data with federal agencies, local governments often put limits on how and whom the data is shared with. There is a clear desire to share the cost for developing and maintaining GIS technology with organizations that use the technology. There is also a desire to maintain control of that data as it is being shared as opposed to providing organizations with data extracts.

Emerging web service technology allows governments to share their data through the Internet (as opposed to data extracts) therefore maintaining control of the security and interpretation of the data.

- 97% of respondents would allow the federal government to use their GIS data for floodplain mapping.
- 96% would allow federal government agencies to use their GIS data in land use and land cover programs.
- 98% would allow federal government agencies to use their GIS data for Homeland Security purposes.
- 97% would allow federal agencies to use their data for emergency preparedness and response.

Call to Action for Government Officials

As demonstrated through examples provided in Exhibit B, GIS is an essential technology for all local governments. The survey results show significant shortfalls in the effective use of GIS technology across the nation.

The common barriers to the effective use of GIS technology in local government include funding, awareness, and education.

Overcoming these barriers will require strong leadership at the federal, state, and local levels.

Leading organizations have overcome many of these barriers through cooperative information and cost sharing programs. Several examples of regional, state, and federal programs exist.

Regional best practice examples of cooperative GIS programs include Cincinnati's Cooperative Agents in a Global Information Space



(CAGIS) project and the San Francisco Bay Area Automated Mapping Association (BAAMA).

State best practice examples include the Maryland State Geographic Information Committee (MSGIC) and the state of Pennsylvania's GIS Consortium (PAGIS).

Federal best practice examples include the Geospatial One Stop project that sponsors geodata.gov (a national GIS data sharing portal).

Actions for Federal Government Officials

- 1. Sponsor outreach programs that provide awareness for local government officials and training for local GIS practitioners.
- 2. Sponsor volunteer programs that allow experienced GIS practitioners to assist local governments with essential project work.
- 3. Provide GIS tools and resources that can be accessed via the Internet.

Actions for State Government Officials

- 1. Conduct periodic state surveys on the availability and use of GIS data.
- 2. Support GIS information and cost sharing organizations and programs.
- 3. Support information sharing Internet portals that provide awareness and education resources.

Actions for Local Government Officials

- 1. Lead and participate in regional cost and information sharing organizations and initiatives.
- 2. Promote the development of Enterprise GIS (shared infrastructure) across government organizations.
- 3. Promote the awareness and education on GIS technology and applications.
- 4. Promote ROI models that promote the effective use of GIS technology.



Exhibits

Exhibit A: Detailed Survey Results

Survey responses have been recorded into an online relational database that can be accessed through the PTI website at <u>www.pti.org</u>. This database is very large and it would be impractical to print the detailed result permutations in this report.

Detailed survey results are available to be accessed in two ways:

- Web-based interactive reporting tool;
- Downloading OLAP Database and Microsoft Excel Pivot table.

Web-based Interactive Reporting Tool

The web-based interactive reporting tool is a custom tool developed by PTI that provides users with quick and easy features for benchmarking survey responses by permutations of geographic region, state, city/county type, and population.

The results include a list of governments that responded to each question as well as the response, response totals, and response questions for many of the questions in the survey.

Put and the benefits of technology and technol	hnology to local government rise CIS and Development Forum Profile Research Se	Personalize Search Tools Personalize Search Tools Pe	Store Access	Deam.
Overview		Geospatial One-Stop Survey	Results	
Forum Events >>				
Resources >>	- All Region	ns - 📓 - All States - 📓 - Cities & Co	unties - 🎴 🛛 - All Populations - 🖉	
Tech Solutions >>	ſ	00.0	Regulta Chart	
		GIS Operating Systems	wise weekly	
Ask the Expert		Recent responses may not be inc	luded.	
Success Stories				
GIS News	Respondents (573)	Response	Responses	(%)
Calendar	Borough of Florham Park, NJ	Windows NT	271	47.3%
	Borough of Hollidaysburg, PA	WINDOWS XP	266	46.4%
OS Survey >>	Borough of Manheim PA	2000	201	12.0%
	Borough of Old Tappan, NJ	Windows (Yr.)	25	4 4%
	Borough of State College, PA	98	23	4%
	City and County of Honolulu, HI	Linux	16	2.8%
	City of Abilene, TX	1998	11	1.9%
	City of Alamogordo, NM	Windows 2000	4	0.7%
	City of Allen, TX	2000 Professional	3	0.5%
	City of Alliance, NE	95	3	0.5%
	City of Altoona, IA	95/98	2	0.3%
	City of Anacostas WA	98, 2000	2	0.3%
	City of Ankeny IA	1995	1	0.2%
	City of Annapolis MD	1997	1	0.2%
	City of Antigo, WI	1998 2000	1	0.2%
	City of Archdale, NC	200	1	0.2%
		2000 & 98	1	0.2%
		2000 Pro	1	0.2%



The survey results can also be viewed as a chart by clicking the chart button on the selection screen.

Bringing the benefits of techn Puguet resultatuograph International Research an	ology to local government Se GIS d Development Forum Profile Research Service	eze Membership Conference Industry Store Access	
Overview Forum Events >> Resources >> Tech Solutions >> Ask the Expert	- All Regions -	Geospatial One-Stop Survey Results All States Chart Please note that the data is refreshed twice weekly. Recent responses may not be included.	
Success Stories GIS News Calendar GOS Survey >>	Respondents (573) Borough of Florkem Park, NJ Borough of Hollidaysburg, PA Borough of Kennett Square, PA Borough of Manheim, PA Borough of Manheim, PA City and County of Honolul, HI City of Alounty of Honolul, HI City of Alimen, TX City of Alimen, TX City of Aliona, PA City of Antona, IA City of Antona, IA	Windows NT Windows XP 2000 UNIX Windows (Yr.) 98 Linux 1998 Windows 2000 2000 Professional 95 95/98 98, 2000 1997 1997 1997 1998 2000 2000 Server	47.3% 46.4% 35.1% 12.9% 4.4% 4% 4.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.3% 0.3% 0.3% 0.2% 0.2% 0.2% 0.2% 0.2%

Microsoft Explorer (5.0 or higher) users can export the survey results to Microsoft Excel by placing the mouse in the results area and clicking the right mouse button. In the menu select Export to Microsoft Excel to access use the survey results for further analysis, presentations, or reports.

Personaliz	e <u>Search</u> Tools: <mark>S</mark>	Select tool feature	
Caller-	Park	Welcome Briant	
mbership <u>Conferer</u>	Forward	re <u>Access</u>	
Geospatial On - All States -	Save Background As Set as Background Copy Background Set as Desktop Item	ults All Populations -	
Systems	Select All	Results Chart	
lease note that the Recent respon	Create Shortcut	eekly.	
ows NT	Add to Favorites View Source		47.3%
OWS XP	Encoding	•	46.4%
() () () () () () () () () () () () () (Print		12.9%
ows (Yr.)	Refresh	_	4.4%
	Export to Microsoft Excel		2.8%
	Properties		1.9%
ows 2000			0.7%
Professional			0.5%
_			0.5%



On-Line Analytical Processing Database (OLAP) and Excel Pivot Table

For more in depth analysis, users can download and use the OLAP database and Microsoft Excel Pivot Table report tool. This tool can be accessed by following simple instructions for downloading and installing the tool on your desktop. The OLAP database includes the entire survey database and the Pivot Table report provides access to the complete set of detailed survey questions and responses.

OLAP is a way to organize large business databases. OLAP databases are organized to fit the way you retrieve and analyze data so that it's easier to create the reports you need.

OLAP databases are designed to speed up the retrieval of data. Because the OLAP server, rather than Microsoft Excel, computes the summarized values, less data needs to be sent to Microsoft Excel when you create or change a report. This approach lets you work with much larger amounts of source data than you could if the data were organized in a traditional database, where Microsoft Excel must retrieve all the individual records and then calculate the summarized values.

A Pivot Table report is an interactive table that quickly combines and compares large amounts of data. You can rotate its rows and columns to see different summaries of the source data, and you can display the details for areas of interest.

From the PTI website, you will click the option to download a zip file that will extract four files into a designated file directory.



To use the file, simply open the Microsoft Excel Worksheet (GOSPivot).

If you are not familiar with Pivot Table reports, it is simple to use. Take five minutes to review the help instructions.

The Pivot Table report allows you to specify any permutation of reporting criteria including the selection of multiple questions (e.g., Enterprise GIS architectures that use IBM DB2)



			P	votTable • 📶 🛍		: .	•					
<u>Eile E</u> dit <u>V</u> iev	w Insert Format Tools Data	<u>W</u> indow <u>H</u> elp							pivo	t table		•
-	1 @ D. V & B B • 🛷	- ···· · ·····························	🚯 100% 🔹 🖓 🗸									
	• 10 • B I ∐ ≣ ≣	≡ 図 \$ %,*ぷ \$? 律律 Ⅲ	· 💁 · 🚣 · .									
ta ta 2 😘	a 🚵 🗹 💀 健 🛯 📽 Reply with (Changes Epd Review 🖕										
B5 -	f∗ Total		R						C	D	F	_
			U						C	U		
Question If f	federal funding were available for	homeland security needs in general, woul	d you utilize a portion of th	nis funding and/or	r loans to im	prove your	GIS system	? 🔻				
lesponses												
State 👻 To	otal											
AK								1			-	
AR								4				
AZ					PivotTa	ble Field Lis	t v	× 9				
CA CO					Drag iter	ms to the Pivo	tTable report	42	1			
CT						сc		7 7				
DE						- CountyPopula	tionBand	1				
GA						Division		13				
1					• 🖃	PopulationBan	d	1				
A						Question		15				
1						Response		29				
N					* 📑	State		9				
(S					ĬÔ	Responses		12				
Δ					-			6				
MA								12				
//D					Add To	Row Area	•	9				
//E					- Aug 10		-	4	-			
WN.								24				
10								15				
NS .								1				
VC VI								21				
ND I								3				
VE III				1.1				4		1		
• • Sneetz	Z (Sneet3 /			11								
icrosoft Excel	I - GOSPivot	Window Help	en Bi	votTable • 🚈 🛍) = = 0 =	: .	1 9 2.		pivo	t table	NUM	
icrosoft Excel Ele Edit Viev	I-GOSPivot w Insert Format Iools Data a → D, ♥ & Be R - ♥	Window Help \overline - Q = - 영국 도 - 승규 조↓ (組) 40	₽ ₽ 100% • 2 •	votTable • 2 W		: .	• • E .		pivo	t table	NUM	
icrosoft Excel Ele Edit Viev 27 🗬 🔒 🔁	I GOSPivot w Insert Format Iools Data a) ⊕ D, ♥ & D 10 • 0 • 10 • B Z U 등 등	Window Help ······· (월. Σ·· 숫) 지 (趙 29 酒 国 명 영 % , % % 『伊 谭 []	₽ ₽ • <u>6</u> 3 - • <u>6</u> • .	votTable • 2 2 10	ai oi	: .	₽ ₽		pivo	t table	NUM	•
icrosoft Excel Ele Edit Vier 2 - A &	I-GOSPivot w Insert Figmat Iools Data a ⊕ D, ♥ & B @ • ♥ • 10 • B J U E = a ⊕ D ⊕ B V Pacely with 0 • Paceparage	Window Help ∽-∝- @.Σ-2↓3↓ 値 & 雪 囲 \$5 %, %,% 保 律 ⊡ Panges Epd Review	₽ ₽ • <u>\$</u> • <u>\$</u> • .	votTable • 2 2 1	and the second s	: 🛱 🗄	9		pivo	t table	NUM	
crosoft Excel Sie Edit Viev Sie Re Re Constant Sie Constant A4 A	I - GOSPivot w Insert Figmat Tools Data a ⊕ D. ♥ & De @ • ♥ • 10 + B J ∐ E ≡ f Responses B	Window Help ◇-◇-◇-◎ Σ-2↓3↓ (組 み) □ 田 95 %, 12, 32 (正 正 >hanges Epd Review	₽ ₽ •	votTable • 2 1 1) = 0 3	\$ 📭 🗄 G	₿ ₽ ₽. H	,	pivo	t table	NUM	•
crosoft Excel	I - GOSPivot w [nsert Fgrmat Iools Data a) ⊕ D, ♥ & B @ • ♥ • 10 • B J U E = a) ⊕ D @ P Repty with 0 & Responses B All How many employees are GIS us	Window Help ◇- へ・ ④ Σ・分 引 値 少 君 国 毎 % , ぷ ぷ 凉 扉 Denges Epd Rever	Ø 100% • (2) . •	votTable • 2 1 1	■ = 03 F	: @ E	¶ ₽ ■ . H	1	pivo	t table	NUM	•
icrosoft Excel	I - GOSPivot w Insert Figmat Tools Data a ⊕ D. ♥ & B @ • ♥ • 10 + B J II = = = a ⊕ @ @ Perkeyvetb from many parcel "splits" ennually occu- reformently parcel "splits" ennually occu- ently parcel "splits" ennually parcel "sp	Window Help ∽ - ∽ - ● ← を + 2↓ 2↓ ● ● 書 田 毎 % , 10, 30 年 年 panges Epd Review	 Ø 100% - (2). Ø - ▲ 	votTable • 2 1	F le Field List	\$ ₪ [H		pivo	t table		•
Ele Edit Verv Ele Edit Verv Ele A State A A State Luestion Responses Verv	I - GOSPivot w Insert Format Iools Data a ⊕ 0 ♥ & B @ ● ♥ • 10 • B I U E E K Responses B Hum many emclowees are GIS us How many parcel "splits" annually occur How often does your juristicino updat How many parcel "splits" annually occur How often does your juristicino updat	Window Help マーマー ● Σ ・ 2↓ ス↓ 単 ク 雪 田 ● S 、 , 10 + 20 使 使 ■ Parges Epd Review C targe? ↓ r in your jurisdiction? e Structure data? d?	₽ 100% • (2) . • ☆ • ▲ • . D	votTable • 2 1	F F Feid List to the PivotTa	G G v x able report	1 Q E .	1	pivo	t table		•
Ele Edi Ver Ele Edi Ver Ele Edi Ver Ele Edi Ver A de A A 4 A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A	GOSPivot Insert Figmat Iools Data D V & B C V Iools Data D V & B C V Iools Data D V & B I I E E D V & B I I E D V & B I I E D V & B I I E D V & B I I E D V & B I I E D V & B I I E D V & B I I E D V & B I I E D V & B I I E D V & B I I E D V & B I I E D V & B I I E D V & B I I E D V & B I I E D V & B I I E D V & B I I E D V & B I I I D V & B I I I D V & B I I I D V & B I I I D V & B I I I D V & B I I D V & B I I I D V & B I I D	Window Help ゆっ ペー 優 Σ - 分 ズ 値 ゆ 音 国 多 多 , 38 43 使 禄 回 Panges Epi Review C tare? Structure data? 2	₽ ₽ 100% - ? ? . • ☆ • ▲ • . D	votTable • 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	F F le Field List s to the PivotTa C	G G v x able report	Р С .	1	pivo	t table		
crosoft Excel Crosoft Excel Crosoft Ver Crosoft Ver Crosoft Ver Crosoft Ver Crosoft Ver Crosoft Excel Crosoft Excel Crosoft Excel Crosoft Excel Crosoft Excel Crosoft Excel Crosoft Ver Crosoft Excel Crosoft Excel Crosoft Excel Crosoft Ver Crosoft Excel Crosoft Excel Croso	GOSPivot Josef Figmat Tools Qata G. ♥ & B @ @ . ♥ Jo + B / I E = = A	Window Help Dong Control Co	₽ 100% - (?) . - (3) - (∆) D	E PivotTable • 2 1 1	F F ie Field List to the PivotTa C cuntyPopulation	G G × x able report	н н	1	oviq	t table		
Crosoft Excel Ele Edt Ver Ele Edt Ver Ele Edt Ver A 4 • A 4 • A 4 • A 4 • A 4 • Constant of the second of	GOSPivot w Insert Figmat Tools Data @ D. ♥ & D. @ • ♥ * 10 + B J I E E # & @ D. ♥ & D I E E # & @ D. ♥ & D I E E # & @ D. ♥ & D I E E # & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & &	Window Help → · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	₽ 100% - (2) . - <u>A</u> - <u>A</u> - <u>.</u> D	VotTable • 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	F F Feield List to the PivoTra C C untyPopulation	G G • × able report	Н		oviq	t table		
Crosoft Excel Cle Edit Ver Cle Edit Ver C	I - GOSPivot W Insert Figmat Tools Data A → D → V A → B → V + 10 + B J I = = = A → D → B J I = = = A → D → B J I = = = A → D → B J I = = = A → D → B J I = = = = A → D → B J I = = = = How many parel "splits" annually occur How distant of the late and maps is You charge for GIS data and maps is	Window Help → C → 優 Σ ・ 2↓ 入↓ 創 伊 雪 田 母 % , 1% - 3% 使 课 日 Parges Ept Review C trin your jurisdiction? s Structure data? 2? Mapping access, the then fame? the revenue critical to funding your G	₽ 100% • (2) . • ▲ • ▲ • . D	VotTable • 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	F F F Field List to the PivotTa C untyPopulation Safon pulationBand	G G V X able report nBand	<u>н</u>		J	t table		
Crosoft Excel Cle Edit Ver Cle Edit Ver Cle Color A4 A4 A4 A4 Cle Color Cle Col	GOSPivot w Insert Figmat Iools Qata @ @ @ @ @ @ @ @ @ @ @ @ @ @ @ @ @	Window Help No - Ca - Q エ - 会子 会社 会社 () の の 雪 囲 日 9 次 , 10 20 位 信 信 () Panges Epd Review C c sare? 2 mediand security needs in general, wor what is the website URL for the last of Mapping access, is the time frame? the revenue of tibe 10 fonding your G ds, do they have unique Dis that can liked by GPS	₽ 100% - ②. • ☆ • ▲ • . D	E Proof Table	F F Feid List a to the PivotTa C C unityPopulation BandatonBand uestion	G G × × able report	1 Q (),		J	t table		
Crosoft Decel	GOSPivot W Insert Format Iools Qata @ Q. ♥ & @ @. ♥ / B Z II E = # / B Z II E = # / B Z II E = # // B Z II E = # // C	Window Help	₽ 100% - (2) . - <u>3</u> - <u>A</u> D	PivotTable • 2 1 1	F F F F F F F F F F F F F F	G G V X able report	I ♥ ■ .	1	J	table K		
Crosoft Excel Ele Edt Ver Control Control Control Ele Edt Ver Control Control Control	GOSPivot w Insert Figmat Tools Data @ D. V & B. D. C. V * 10 * B Z U E E * V * 10 * B Z U E E * V * Responses * Responses * Responses * Responses * Responses * II * How many parcel splits* annualy coccl two often des your jurisdiction updat * More and the insert of the insert of the insert of the set of the insert of the	Window Help Window Help ■ 田 9 次 - 2+ 2+ 2+ 4 ■ 田 9 次 , 28, 33 译 译 □ Parges Ecd Review C arre? → r in your juridiction? a Structure data? 2? omeland security needs in general, wor whap in access, the time frame? 2? omeland security needs in general, wor whap in access, the time frame? the revenue critical to funding your G d, ob they have unique Db that can blend by GFS? information, how is it created? information, how is it created?	₽ 100% - (2) . - <u>A</u> - <u>A</u> D	VotTable - E PrvotTabl Drag items = Cc = Dr = Cc = Dr = Cc = Dr = Cc = Dr = Cc = Dr = Cc = Dr = Dr	F F le Field List to the PivotTa C. c. unttPopulationBand uesponse tate esponse	G G V X able report nBand	₿ ₽ 3 (m) , H	1	pive	t table		
crosoft Excel cessoft Excel cessoft Excel cessoft	GOSPivot w Insert Figmat Iools Data D V & Data D	Window Help → C → Q ∑ + 2↓ 2↓ W 2 ■ 田 45 % , 28 % 定 症 → 28 % 2 * 2 * 2 * 2 * 2 * 2 * 2 * 2 * 2 * 2	₽ 100% • (2) . • ☆ • ▲ • . D	VotTable - E ProtTable Dragitems ProtTable ProtTabl	F le Field List a to the PivotTa C unityPopulationBand uestion esponse tate esponses	G G • × able report nBand	н	1	pivo	t table		
Crosoft Excel Consoft Excel Consof	GOSPivot W Insert Fgmat Tools Data Go V & B C V C V C V C V C V C V C V C V C V C	Window Help No - C - 例 Σ - 2↓ 3↓ 創 2 ■ 題 9 % , 38 43 使 谏 Danges Epd Review C c sare? → C c c c c c c c c c c c c c	₽ 100% - ②. • ▲ • ▲ • . D	VotTable • 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	F F F F F F F F F F F F F F	C G × × able report	н		pive J	t table		
Crosoft Excel Consoft Excel Consof	GOSPivot W Insert Figmat Iools Data B Q V & B Q A D V & B Q A D V & B Q A D V & B I I I E E D V & B I I I E E D V & B I I I E E D V & B I I I E E D V & C V Redy with C For many parcel rapits ² annually occur For many parcel rapits ² annually occur B How many parcel rapits ² annually occur For many parcel rapits ² annually occur For many parcel rapits ² annually occur For many parcel rapits ² annually occur If you are planning to provideInterret If you are planning to provideInterret If you are either fodprints or centrol If you are land records, are they estate If you quisalcon inits the distributio Is your digital cadastral map used for p	Window Help No C → ● Σ - 2↓ 3↓ 創 2 ■ 国 9 % , 28 % 定 译 □ Parges Ed Rever C C arre? → C C what is the website URL for the list of Mapping access, but them fame? the revenue critical to funding your G d, do they have unque Dis that can alided by GFS? orgaphy layer, how is it created? information, how is it created? information, how is it created? information, how is it created? proparty layer, how is it created? proparty alea collection activities? proparty alea collection activities? for thematic mapping because it in ord ther adjointing unstactions on building in the adjointing unstaction activities? C C C C C C C C C C C C C	₽ 100% - (2) . - <u>3</u> - <u>A</u> D	VotTable • 21 10 E PrvotTabl Drag items # Cc # Drag items # Cc # Cc	F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F	G G × × able report nBand	н		pive	t table		
Crosoft Excel Construction	GOSPivot W Insert Figmat Tools Data D V S B C V S B C V S D V B Z U E E C V S C	Window Help Particle Control	₽ 100% - (2) . - ☆ - ▲ D	VotTable - E PrvotTabl Dragitem + C + Dr + Dr + Dr + Dr + Dr + Dr + Dr + Dr	F In Field List a to the PivotTa to the PivotTa c pulationBand uestion esponses Tate esponses	G G V X able report nBand	н		pive	table K		
Crosoft Excel Consoft Excel Consof	GOSPivot w Insert Figmat Iools Data Go V & Data	Window Help No - C - 今 文 - 会 天 会 天 () () () () 田 田 田 田 小 () () () () () () () () () (₽ 100% • (?). • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	VotTable - E ProtTable Dragitems ProtTable ProtTabl	F F In Field List a to the PivotTa C unityPopulation pulationBand uestion esponses tate ate Row Area	G G V X able report nBand	н		pive	t table		
Crosoft Excel Construction	GOSPivot W Insert Fgmat Iools Qata Go V & B C V C V C Qata Go V & B C V C V C V C V C V C V C V C V C V C	Window Help Window Help Window Help B S 2 + 2↓ 2↓ W 2 B S 24 , 28 25 24 Danges Edd Review C C sare 2 C median Security needs in general, wo white the webcale ULL, for the last of r Mapping access, is the time frame? dr do duey have unique IDs that can labeled by GP3? orgaph (sare, how is it created? Information, how is it generated? Information, how is it created? Information, how is it created? Information, how is it created? Information, how is it created? Information, how is it generated? Information, how is it generated? Information purced the notified and we have the post these data	₽ 100% - (2) . - <u>3</u> - <u>4</u> D	VotTable • 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F	G G V X able report nBand	н		pivo J	t table		
Crosoft Excel Ele Edt yea Ele Edt yea Image: State St	GOSPivot Winsert Format Iools Data Go V & B C V C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	Window Help Window Help Window Help ■ 国 9 次 , 10, 13 保 律 Parges Edd Review C C arrs2 → meland security needs in general, wo habit is the webatic URL for the last of Mapping access, but them finane? 22 meland security needs in general, wo habit is the webatic URL for the last of Mapping access, but the finane? the revenue critical to funding your 6 d, of whe yave unique Dib that can blieded by GFS? rongraphy layer, how is it created? Information, how is it created? Information pursicitors on building in data to be used by state and federal is w these agencies to credistribut there	₽ 100% - (2) . - <u>></u> - <u>></u> - D	VotTable - 2000	F F le Field List is to the PivotTa c. c. unityPopulation Band esponse tate esponse tate esponses	¢ 🕼 🗍	Н	1	pivo		L	
Crosoft Excel Construction	GOSPivot w Insert Figmat Iools Data D V & D R V Color Data D V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V	Window Help Window Help Window Help Window Karlow States Window Karlow States and Review	₽ 100% • (2) • • ▲ • ▲ • • D	VotTable - 2010	F In Field List a to the PhvotTa C unityPopulation pulationBand uestion esponses Row Area	G G V X able report nBand	Н		pivo	t table		
Crosoft Excel Construction	GOSPivot Josef Figmat Tools Qata Got V & B C V C V C V V V V V V V V V V V V V V	Window Help No - C - 今 文 - 会上 会上 (山 の の 田 田 9 次 , 28 - 会上 会上 (山 の の 田 田 9 次 , 28 - 会上 会上 (山 の の 田 田 9 次 , 28 - 会上 会上 (山 の の 田 田 9 次 , 28 - 会上 会上 (山 の の 田 10 元 10	₽ 100% • (?). • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	VotTable - E ProtTable Dragitems ProtTable ProtTabl	F F F F F F F F F F F F F F	G G V X able report nBand	н		pivo J	k table		
Crosoft Excel Construction	GOSPIvot W Insert Fgmat Iools Data Go V & S Construction Figure 1 Iools Data Go V & S Construction Figure 2 Iools Fi	Window Help No. Co (ア ・ シークトスト () ・ シークト 国 国 多 % , 28 × 38 年 年 Danges Ed Rever C C arre? - C C arre? - C C arre? - C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	₽ 100% - (2) . - <u>3</u> - <u>A</u> D	VotTable • 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	F F F F F F F F F F F F F F	C G V X able report nBand	н		pivo J	table K		
Crosoft Excel Construction	GOSPivot Winsert Figmat Tools Data Go V & B C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	Window Help Window Help Window Help Window Help Window Karlow States Window Help Window States and States C C C C C C C C C C C C C	₽ 100% - (2) . - ▲ D	VotTable - E PivotTable Dragitems PivotTabl Dragitems PivotTable E Dragitems PivotTable E Dragitems PivotTable E Dragitems PivotTable E Dragitems PivotTable E Dragitems PivotTable E Dragitems PivotTable E Dragitems PivotTable E Dragitems PivotTable E Dragitems PivotTable E PivotTable PivotTable E PivotTable PivotTa	F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F		H		pivo J	k table		
Crosoft Excel Consoft	GOSPivot w Insert Figmat Iools Data A Solution The Solution of Solution Sol	Window Help No - C · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		votTable - E ProtTable Dragitems # C- #	F le Field List a to the PhveTra C unityPopulation pulationBand uestion esponses Row Area	G G V X able report nBand	н		pivo			
Crosoft Excel Construction	GOSPivot W Insert Fgrmat Tools Data Gold Control Contrecont Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Cont	Window Help Window Help Window Help Window Kelp Window Kelp Windo	₽ 100% - (2) . - <u>3</u> - <u>4</u> D	VotTable - E ProotTable Drag items Pro CCC Pro CCC Pro Pro CC PrO	F F le Field List to the PrvotTa C C unityPopulation vision pulationBand uestion esponses late esponses Row Area	C G V Able report able report	н			table		
Crosoft Excel Consoft Excel Consof	GOSPIvot w Insert Fgrmat Iools Data W Insert I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	Window Help Window Help Window Help Window Help Window Karlow States Window Help Window States of States Window Help Window Hel		VotTable • 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	F F In Field List to the PivotTa c. c. unttPopulationBand uesponse tate esponses Tate asponses Tate asponses Tate Tat		1 % E .		pivo	K table		
Crosoft Excel Consoft Excel Consof	COSPIVAT W Insert Figmat Tools Data Definition of the second secon	Window Help Window Help Window Help Window Kill Window Kill Windo		votTable - E ProotTabl Dragitem + C + Dragitem + Dragitem	F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F	C G V X able report nBand	Н		pive	t table		



Exhibit B: Examples of GIS in Local Government

Cincinnati and Hamilton County, Ohio http://www.cagis.hamilton-co.org

The mission of the Cincinnati Area Geographic Information System (CAGIS) is to create a revolutionary computerized information sharing system that enables the fundamental transformation of government and utility service management and delivery. CAGIS is to offer government, utility companies, groups, or citizens a new, intelligent, and cost effective tool to make informed decisions based on shared data within a standard framework. CAGIS is a consortium of the land and infrastructure agencies in the City of Cincinnati, Hamilton County, Cincinnati Bell Telephone and Cincinnati Gas & Electric.

In 1995 CAGIS established the foundation for automating the functions of government and utilities whose activities create the inventories of sewers, land records, water, drainage, electrical systems, streets, right of way, etc. supporting the community. Having a real-time availability of the graphic and alpha - numeric inventories has been demonstrated as the strategy upon which major cost improvements in line department operations are based. In 1995 CAGIS began the design for the automation of the Permits System for the City of Cincinnati, Hamilton County and Cincinnati Gas and Electric Company as the first stage of embedding maintenance of inventory data into the on-going work of employees. The Permits project concentrates on the additions and deletions made to all of the public and utility managed inventories by the activities of the private sector. The goals of the project are to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the permitting services offered the private sector while enabling the real time parallel maintenance of the graphic and alpha numeric inventory databases.

Montgomery County, Maryland http://gis.montgomerycountymd.gov

The Montgomery County, Maryland Department of Technology Services - Geographic Information Systems (DTS-GIS) team, in cooperation with the Department of Fire & Rescue Service (DFRS), developed an ArcView GIS based Emergency Operations Center (EOC) application. The application provides the County Emergency Management (EM) team assembled at the EOC during emergencies with useful geographical and tabular data. It improves EM staff efficiency for displaying/printing Montgomery County (MC) geographic and associated attribute data. The EOC application functionality includes geographical data display, attribute data for over 40 MC



databases, including Washington Gas Lines, WSSC water lines/hydrants, MC road networks, and Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission (M-NCPPC) property data listings. This enables the EM staff to only call up the application in the event of an EOC emergency activation or emergency exercise and access the information. The MC geographic data presented in the EOC application reflects information downloaded daily, weekly, or quarterly by DTS-GIS.

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania http://citymaps.phila.gov

CityMaps (citymaps.phila.gov), is an address-based mapping service web site that uses GIS technology to help citizens, businesses, and visitors view geographic features (e.g., houses, streets, etc.), determine service areas (e.g., zoning districts, police districts, etc.) and locate facilities (e.g., recreation centers, libraries, or hospitals) within the City of Philadelphia. The City's Mayor's Office of Information Services, GIS Services Group, created this web site using inter-agency collaboration in support of the Mayor's Vision for a Better Philadelphia to provide individuals with on-line access to City information.

By entering a valid address within the Philadelphia city limits, users can:

- get a bird's-eye view of a neighborhood using digital orthophotography (aerial photography);
- examine zoning districts, get zoning code information and overlay other land use controls and restriction information;
- determine the geo-political or service area (such as council district, ward or zip code) for a given address or location;
- find the nearest recreation center, library, or hospital.

Users of CityMaps can easily use this address-based mapping service web site to obtain various types of information related to a particular address that would ordinarily be extremely difficult to obtain. Also because the application was built using GIS technology, end-users can not only quickly and easily view address related information, but also print cartographic results as well as hotlink to related web sites for additional information.



Acknowledgements

Geospatial One Stop Board

An Intergovernmental Board of Directors composed of state, local, tribal and federal representatives governs the Geospatial One Stop initiative. This Intergovernmental Board helps provide guidance on the direction of the project and ensures dialogue among the levels of government making major investments in geospatial information. Based on the substantial investment of state and local governments in the collection and management of geospatial data, formation of an intergovernmental board is intended to facilitate the ability of governments to leverage their individual resources to be more efficient, more cost effective and better serve their citizens.

The Board of Directors includes representatives from the following organizations:

- International City/County Management Association
- Intertribal GIS Council
- National Association of State Chief Information Officers
- National States Geographic Information Council
- National Association of Counties
- National League of Cities
- Western Governors Association
- Department of the Interior
- Department of Commerce
- Department of Transportation
- National Aeronautics and Space Administration



Geospatial Survey Management Team

The following individuals were instrumental in the development of the survey:

Brian Anderson Chief Information Officer Public Technology, Inc.

Christine Becker Deputy Executive Director National League of Cities

Douglas Blocker International City/County Management Association

Dale Bowen Information Specialist Public Technology, Inc.

Scott J Cameron Deputy Assistant Secretary for Performance and Management U.S. Department of the Interior

Sebia Clark International City/County Management Association

Ivan B. DeLoatch Staff Director Federal Geographic Data Committee

Ed Ferguson Deputy Executive Director National Association of Counties

Hank Garie Executive Director Geospatial One Stop

Bert Jarreau Chief Technology Officer National Association of Counties

Thomas McCloud Chief Operating Officer Public Technology, Inc.

2003 National GIS Survey



Evelina Moulder Director of Survey Design and Research International City/County Management Association

Milo Robinson Project Management Office Geospatial One Stop

Gary Sun Public Technology, Inc.

Leslie Wollack Outreach and Communications Manager Geospatial One Stop

Survey Advisory Groups

Local Government Policy and Management Committee

NLC Members Sonja Berg Councilmember, St. Cloud, MN

Gerald Ergle Mayor, Ocala, FL

Jim Haggerton Councilmember, Tukwila, WA

Carlton Moore Councilmember, Ft Lauderdale, FL

Dan Nicholson Councilmember, Dubuque, IA

Steve Stovall Deputy Mayor Pro Tem, Plano, TX

Scott Wilson Council Vice President, Hyattsville, MD ICMA Members Eric Anderson City Manger, Des Moines, IA

Frank Fairbanks City Manager, Phoenix, AZ

Bill McGill Director of Information & Administrative Services, Issaquah, WA

NACo Members Randy Johnson Commissioner, Hennepin County, MN

John Jenkins Supervisor, Prince William County, VA

Marilyn Praisner Councilmember, Montgomery County, MD



Local Government Technical Advisory Committee

Chair Al Leidner Assistant Commissioner, GIS Department of I.T. and Telecommunications City of New York

Arlington County, VA Mary Beth Fletcher

Bellevue, WA Chelo Picardal Jubal Early

Broken Arrow, OK Cliff Montgomery

Casper, WY Liz Hepp

Cincinnati/Hamilton County, OH Barbara Quinn

Clark County, NV Clint Woods

Fairfax County, VA Thomas Conry

Fort Worth, TX Betsi Chatham

Guilford County, NC Stephen Dew

Hampton, VA Allan Lambert

Hillsborough Co., FL Mark Dickson

Lakewood, CA Sonia Southwell, Miami-Dade County, FL Mary Fuentes

Montgomery County, MD James Simkins

Monroe County, NY Steve Schwartzmeier

Oakland, CA Patrick Simon

Oklahoma City, OK Schad Meldrum

Orlando, FL Dave Gancarz John Matelski

Palo Alto, CA Dave Matson

Philadelphia, PA James Querry

Pinellas County, FL Donald Lord

Rochester, NY Carol Schmitt

Rockville MD Pedro Flores

Special thanks to Bill Burgess, Geographic Information Services Division, Maryland Department of Natural Resources, for his assistance in the

development of the Geospatial One Stop survey.

San Diego, CA Gabriela Coverdale San Francisco, CA Erich Seamon

San Jose, CA Tim Hayes

Santa Monica, CA Michael Carson

Scottsdale, AZ Mark Ledbetter

Sedona, AZ Aaron Seifert

Springfield, MO Mike Fonner

South Sioux City, NE Lance Martin

Urbandale, IA Dave McKay

Washtenaw County, MI Kimberly Wraight

Winston-Salem, NC Tim Lesser